ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 12, 2012
12: 32 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senat or John Coghi |

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCGuire
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 151

"An Act relating to mtigation at sentencing in a crimnal case
for a defendant found by the court to have been affected by a
fetal al cohol spectrum disorder.”

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 180

"An Act directing the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities to develop and inplenment standards and operating
procedures allowing for the wuse in the construction and
mai nt enance of transportation projects and public facilities and
in the construction of projects by public and private entities
of gravel or aggregate materials that contain a |imted anount
of naturally occurring asbestos, and authorizing use on an
interim basis of those materials for <certain transportation
projects and public facilities; relating to certain clains
arising out of or in connection with the use of gravel or
aggregate materials containing a |imted armount of naturally
occurring asbestos; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 151

SHORT TITLE: FETAL ALCOHOL SPEC. DI SORDER AS M Tl GATOR
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2012



01/ 17/ 12 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/13/12

01/ 17/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 17/ 12 (S) HSS, JUD

03/ 05/ 12 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 05/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 151(HSS) Qut of Committee
03/ 05/ 12 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 06/ 12 (S) HSS RPT CS 4DP NEW TI TLE

03/ 06/ 12 (S) DP: DAVIS, DYSON, MEYER, EGAN

03/ 12/ 12 (S) JUD AT 12:30 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 180
SHORT TI TLE: NATURALLY OCCURRI NG ASBESTOS | N GRAVEL
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

01/ 27/ 12 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 27/ 12 (S) TRA, JUD

02/ 23/ 12 (S) TRA AT 1:00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 23/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 180(TRA) Qut of Committee
02/ 23/ 12 (S) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 24/ 12 (S) TRA RPT CS 3DP NEW TI TLE

02/ 24/ 12 (S) DP: KOOKESH, MENARD, THOVAS

02/ 24/ 12 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

03/ 12/ 12 (S) JUD AT 12:30 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 151.

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, St aff

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on SB 151 on behal f of
t he sponsor.

JUDGE M CHAEL JEFFERY, representing hinsel f
Barrow, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 151.

VI CKY Tl NKER, Team Coor di nat or

Kenai Peni nsul a FASD Di agnosti ¢ Program

Kenai, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 151.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2012



KATE BURKHART, Executive Director

Al aska Mental Health Board and

Advi sory Board on Al coholismand Drug Abuse

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 151.

RI CK | ANNOLI NO, representing hinself
Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 151.

MARGARET VROLYK, Parent Navi gator

Juneau FASD Di agnostic Cinic

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 151.

DAVI D SCOTIT, Staff

Senat or Donny QO son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced SB 180 on behal f of the sponsor.

DOCTOR JOE MCLAUGHLI N, State Epi dem ol ogi st

Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 180 and provi ded information
on the human health risks associated with exposure to airborne
asbest os.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

12:32: 22 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 12:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Paskvan, and Chair French.
Senator Coghill arrived soon thereafter.

SB 151- FETAL ALCOHOL SPEC. DI SORDER AS M TI GATOR

12: 32: 39 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 151, "An Act
relating to mtigation at sentencing in a crimnal case for a
defendant found by the court to have been affected by a fetal
al cohol spectrum disorder." He asked for a notion to adopt the
proposed conm ttee substitute (CS).

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to adopt the proposed CS for SB 151,
| abel ed 27-LS1132\ O, as the working docunent.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2012



CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection, version O was
before the commttee.

SENATOR COCGHI LL joined the commttee.

12: 32: 59 PM

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER, sponsor of SB 151, explained that the bil
woul d specifically include Fetal Alcohol Spectrum D sorders
(FASD) in the state's existing definition of "nmental disease or
defect” and as a mtigating factor in sentencing. He cautioned
that the intent was not to appear soft on crine, but to allow
for nore appropriate sentencing for people who suffer fromthis
disability. This dovetails with Chief Justice Carpeneti's recent
speech to the Legislature that enphasized flexibility in
sent enci ng.

SENATOR MEYER said flexibility is particularly inportant when a
judge considers sentencing for a person wth a spectrum
di sorder. Al aska has the highest rate of FASD in the nation, and
according to the experts at the Al aska FASD Partnership, people
with FASD are disproportionately represented within the crimna

justice system He spoke of his notivation to do nore to prevent
this very preventable disability.

12: 36: 43 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the mtigater in paragraph (18), page 3,
lines 12-16, had been used in FASD cases, and if it was used why
wasn't it working.

SENATOR MEYER said part of the reason for bringing the bill
forward was that paragraph (18) has produced inconsistent
results from judges. Sone say FASD is included while others say
it is not inplicitly defined.

12: 37: 41 PM
CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, staff to Senator Kevin Meyer, confirned
that interpretation of that section was inconsistent, and

suggested that Judge Jeffry could address the question nore
t horoughly. She also pointed out that the sponsor deferred to
t he Departnment of Law (DOL) and other FASD advocates and renoved
from version O the section that included "inpaired brain
function” in the definition of "nmental disease or defect." That
al so accounts for the expanded definition at the end of the
bill.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2012



CHAI R FRENCH asked who woul d make the diagnosis that a defendant
is affected by FASD.

SENATOR MEYER directed attention to page 3, line 30. It says a
determ nation is made by a neuropsychol ogi cal exam nati on.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if a medi cal doctor woul d make the diagnosis.
SENATOR MEYER sai d yes.

CHAI R FRENCH opened public testinony.

12: 40: 41 PM
JUDGE M CHAEL JEFFERY, representing hinself, Barrow, AK relayed
his personal experience to illustrate that the mtigater in

exi sting |l aw was not adequate for use in FASD cases. In 1990, he
accepted a non-statutory mtigating factor for a FASD condition,
and a three-judge panel sent it back saying he could not use it
because the Legislature spoke and the nental disease or defect
did not fit that condition. He was therefore required to inpose
the presunptive term He enphasized the inportance of this
| egi sl ati on.

Addressing the question of who does the diagnosis, he said it is
appropriate that a nedical doctor nmakes the diagnosis, but
requiring that specialty designation would be a big limtation

Many people who have a professional FASD di agnosis would not fit
within that definition. He continued to say that this was all
about smart justice. If it can be shown by clear and convincing
evi dence that the defendant has the condition and it
significantly affected his or her conduct, a judge could use
di scretion and potentially adjust the presunptive term downwar d.

JUDGE JEFFERY said he was pleased that version O provides nore
flexibility by elimnating the prohibition on the mtigater
bei ng applicable to anyone with an assaultive offense.

12:45: 02 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked how preval ent FASD was anong defendants who
appear in his court.

JUDGE JEFFERY said it was unusual for a defendant to have a
nmedi cal diagnosis, and it was very difficult to identify FASD
wi t hout one. A defendant who has a FASD di agnosis nost probably
received it earlier when he or she was in the child welfare
system or the juvenile justice system He relayed his belief
that a significant percentage of the people that appear before

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2012



him are affected to sone degree and he acconmobdates that by
sl owi ng things down and aski ng nore questions.

12:48: 16 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked about the bal ance between this mtigater
public safety, and responsibility for one's actions.

JUDGE JEFFERY expl ained that there is not an automatic reduction
of sentence and the crimnal justice system will continue to
hol d peopl e responsible for their actions. A person who presents
a danger to the public won't be rehabilitated in the community,
and a person who is released under treatnent and conmts another
offense will be returned to jail.

12: 50: 58 PM
VI CKY TI NKER, Team Coordi nator, Kenai Peninsula FASD D agnostic
Program Kenai, AK, introduced herself.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Tinker her perspective of what it would
take to put FASD evidence in front of a court.

M5. TINKER explained that in Al aska a physician makes the fina
di agnosis after getting input from a psychologist, a speech
t herapi st, and sonetines an occupational therapist, all of which
are part of a diagnostic team She agreed that the current
| anguage "as determned by a neuropsychol ogical exam nation”
could be problematic. Not all the teanms have a psychol ogist with
that particular specialty and a neuropsychol ogi st does not make
the final diagnosis.

CHAI R FRENCH summari zed her points.

M5. TINKER added that the nedical provider on the team can be a
m d-1 evel practitioner such as a nurse practitioner or physician
assistant, but it would be wunusual for either to make the
of ficial diagnosis alone.

12:53: 20 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said he would not feel confortable having anyone
but a medi cal doctor make the final diagnosis.

M5. TINKER said in cases when a physician [assistant] or nurse
practitioner makes the final nedical diagnhosis, they are also
using information from the other providers on the team It is
not an i ndependent diagnosis.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2012



CHAIR FRENCH said the conmittee would work with the sponsor on
t hat | anguage.

12:54: 14 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked the nunber of diagnostic teans statew de.

M5. TINKER estinated there were eight or nine.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the court could access these teans
easily or if they were ad hoc.

M5. TINKER replied the court can easily draw upon them and a

team in one area can fill needs in another area that does not
have one.

12: 55: 04 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what type of examnation she would
recommend i f it woul d be too narrow to require a

neur opsychol ogi cal exam nati on.

M5. TINKER suggested it would be safe to say, "as determ ned by
a physician or a diagnostic team"™

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it would be too narrow to say, "as
determ ned by a physician."

M5. TINKER said yes, and provided an exanple. The nedical
provider on the diagnostic team associated with Assets, Inc. in
Anchorage is probably nore know edgeabl e about FASD than nost
physi ci ans, and that person is an advanced nurse practitioner.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if there was a definition in law for
"di agnostic team"”

M5. TINKER said no. She said she believes that by |law, a nedi cal
provi der makes the diagnosis, but the gold standard for
di agnosis is the University of Wshington nodel. That is what
Al aska uses.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there was information in the packet
about the University of Washington nodel, because it probably
addresses the physician's participation in the team process.

CHAI R FRENCH noted that soneone in the audience indicated they
could tal k about that.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2012



SENATOR COGHILL said he would like nore information on the range
of the disorder because he suspects the ability to respond
accountably will be a factor for the court to consider.

M5. TINKER said on one end of the spectrum a person nmay be able
to function in society and not break rules, whereas soneone on
the other end nmay have so little control over their behavior and
deci si on-meki ng that they need to be institutionalized. However,
even sonmeone who is lightly inpaired may have difficulty
controlling their inpulses and connecting consequences to their
actions.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he was | ooking at ways for the judge to be
as inforned as possi bl e.

1: 00: 50 PM

KATE BURKHART, Executive Director, Alaska Mental Health Board
and Advisory Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse, testified in
support of SB 151. She stated that the FASD popul ation in Al aska
is disproportionately represented 1in the corrections and
crimnal justice systens, and SB 151 provides an opportunity to
enbrace Chief Justice Carpeneti's call for smart justice. It
|l ooks first to alternative sentences and punishments that both
protect the public and rehabilitate the perpetrator. She
reiterated Judge Jeffery's comments that dangerous persons wl|
not be rehabilitated in the conmunity. Rather, SB 151 affords
judges the discretion to balance public safety and community
rehabilitation.

M5. BURKHART echoed the concerns about the neuropsychol ogi cal
exam nation limtation and suggested saying, "a physician or
University of Wshington credentialed FASD diagnhostic team”
That would probably address the concerns about the I|evel of
experience and expertise of the person nmaking the diagnosis and
woul d reflect the actualities of what Al aska' s diagnostic teans
do. She directed attention to paragraph (18) on page 3 and
suggested revising the language to say that the mtigater could
be applied in crimes against a person except for repeat
fel oni es. That bal ances the opportunity to be snmart and flexible
to potentially break the cycle of recidivism for soneone
di agnosed wi t h FASD.

1:06: 33 PM

RI CK 1 ANNOLI NO, representing hinself, said he was the
coordi nator of the Juneau FASD Diagnostic Cdinic. He described
t he physical aspects that are considered in diagnosing FASD and
said it should not be a problem that a non-physician nedica

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2012



person does these exans because that has been the practice for
many years. Addressing the concern about the neuropsychol ogica
exam nation, he said a neuropsychologist is not a required
menber of the team under the University of Wshington diagnostic
team certification. He discussed the wde range of tests
performed by each of the team nenbers. The psychol ogi st | ooks at
the brain functions, the speech and | anguage pathol ogi st | ooks
at receptive comuni cation, the occupational therapist |ooks at
everyday activities and the physical therapist |ooks at the
| arge muscl e functions.

Responding to a series of questions fromthe Chair, he explai ned
that the FASD provider agreenment requires each team to have a
physician, a psychologist, an occupational therapist or a
physi cal therapist or a speech and |anguage pathologist, and a
parent navigator. As coordinator, he does not assist in
rendering the diagnosis, but he ensures the professionals are
appropriate for the client. The Juneau team sees about 24
clients in a year.

1:13: 07 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if a person with FASD could experience
cognitive grow h.

MR.  TANNOLINO replied soneone wth FASD may be able to
accomodate other ways of l|earning, but the brain damage is
per manent .

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the credentialing is affected if one of
t he vol unteer nmenbers w thdraws.

MR. | ANNCLI NO responded that the Juneau team is the exception
nost teans do not rely on vol unteers.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how many credentialed team nmenbers would
be qualified to present this as a mtigater at a crimnal
pr oceedi ng.

MR. | ANNCLI NO said nost people cone to the clinic because they
are having severe problens at school, with their famlies, or
with the | aw

1:16:52 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if many of the people who arrive at the
clinic have pending crimnal cases.

MR. | ANNCLI NO sai d yes.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 12, 2012



CHAIR FRENCH asked if they are seeking a diagnosis for court
purposes or if a variety of issues has driven them to the
clinic.

MR. [ ANNOLINO said they are trying to live and inadvertently
make poor deci sions.

1:18: 11 PM

MARGARET VROLYK, Parent Navigator, Juneau FASD D agnostic
Clinic, testified in support of SB 151. She spoke of her
experience as a parent of a son with FASD and voiced concern
with the exception in paragraph (18) on page 3. It is very easy
for soneone with FASD to becone a felon by association, she
sai d.

1: 20: 53 PM
CHAI R FRENCH held SB 151 in committee.

SB 180- NATURALLY OCCURRI NG ASBESTOS | N GRAVEL

1: 21: 04 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 180 and asked for
a notion to adopt the work draft commttee substitute (CS).

1:21:41 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to adopt the proposed CS for SB 180
| abel ed 27-LS1219\ D, as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection, version D was
before the commttee.

DAVI D SCOTT, staff to Senator Donny O son, introduced SB 180 on
behal f of the sponsor. He explained that the bill regulates the
use of gravel that contains naturally occurring asbestos (NOA).
This gravel is used primarily for transportation projects and is
very prevalent in certain areas throughout the state. Since NOA
was found in the gravel in the Anbler area of the upper Kobuk
Val l ey, all construction has stopped.

CHAI R FRENCH asked when it cane to light that gravel in the
Anbl er area cont ai ned NOA

MR. SCOIT estimated it was in early 2000, and confirned that

construction projects have been on hold since then. Continuing
the introduction, he explained that the bill offers liability

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 12, 2012



immunity to the state and contractors that follow the standard
operating procedures of the state.

1:24:21 PM

CHAI R FRENCH observed that the inmmunity would be to hold anyone
harm ess for what nmay be deleterious health effects of exposure
to naturally occurring asbestos.

MR. SCOIT reiterated that the imunity was dependent on
following the established procedure. Anyone who does not follow
t he procedure or decides to use gravel that contains NOA w thout
getting plan approval from the Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities (DOTPF) would be liable for any civil action
br ought forward.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if naturally occurring asbestos presents the
same health issues as asbestos that has been used in paint and
i nsul ati on.

MR. SCOIT deferred the question to representatives from the
Department of Environnental Conservation (DEC), the Departnent
of Health and Soci al Services (DHSS) or Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF). He noted that the
bill defines naturally occurring asbestos as |["asbestos-
containing material that has not been processed in an asbestos
mill."]

1: 26: 08 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if NOA occurs in gravel in areas other than
t he Anbl er region.

MR. SCOIT answered yes; it is found throughout the state and is
prevalent in areas that have concentrations of jade.

1:26:52 PM

DOCTOR JOE MCLAUGHLIN, state epidem ologist, Departnent of
Heal th and Social Services (DHSS), stated that the concern with
asbestos is that it is hazardous to humans in any form and can
cause lung cancer, nmesot hel i oma, and non-nal i gnant l ung
conditions such as asbestosis. Naturally occurring asbestos does
not present a health threat if it is not disturbed, but if
natural weathering or human disturbance breaks the NOA into
m croscopic fibers it can readily becone airborne and inhaled.
That is cause for concern. In general, longer, thinner fibers
are nore toxic and irritating to the alveoli. The good news for
Anmbler is that the type of asbestos found there is considered

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2012



the least toxic of the six major asbestos fibers. However, it is
not non-toxic.

1:28: 44 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if it is an issue to dig the gravel and
put it on a roadway that would be subject to wear and natura
er osi on.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN said yes; health concerns are the reason that
projects in the Anbler area have | angui shed.

1:29:29 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if there was any safe |level of
asbest os exposure.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN said no; froma human health standpoint, there is
no save | evel of airborne exposure to asbestos. The U S. Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), the U S. Environnental
Protection Agency (EPA), and all health departnments in the
country have raised this concern.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the typical latency period for
getting asbestosis, nmesothelioma or other asbestos-rel ated
di seases.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N replied npost asbestos-rel ated di seases occur 10-
40 years after the first exposure.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI nentioned the immunity provided in the
bill, and asked if there would be a risk of airborne asbestos
from NOA containing gravel that is been used on a roadbed.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN replied there is always a risk when naturally
occurring ashbestos is airborne. He offered his understanding
that the bill seeks to establish an analytic threshold for
detection of NOA in gravel, nodeling the California |aw that
says that gravel that contains less than .25 percent NOA can be
used for surfacing roads. He described the process and
calculations for determning the analytical detection [imt. If
a fiber of asbestos is found in one of 400 point observations,
that calculates to .25 percent of naturally occurring asbestos
in that substrate [1/400 X 100] and the gravel cannot be used.
If no fibers are detected, the level of NOA is below the
anal ytical threshold | evel and the gravel can be used.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what percent of asbestos occurs in the gravel
in the Anbl er area.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2012



DR. MCLAUGHLIN said it depends on the site tested, but the
concentrations range from greater than or equal to 10 percent to
|l ess than 1 percent. He noted that he did not have the data from
t he nost recent DOTPF tests.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if any process could separate even sone
asbestos fromthe gravel.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N deferred to DOTPF.

1: 34: 30 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if the California standard presupposes the
use of gravel containing NOA in pavenent or for all purposes.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN offered to send a copy of the ATCM for Surfacing
Applications, the California docunent that |ists exenptions. One
is that NOA containing gravel may be used on unpaved roads in
rural areas where an alternative is not avail able.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the federal limt for using grave
containing NOA was simlar to .25 percent, and the type of
safety gear workers woul d need to wear.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN said the federal agencies have not established a
safe threshold for exposure to naturally occurring asbestos so
it is a zero threshold toxin from the human heal th standpoint.
However, the federal governnent does regulate the use of
asbestos to protect human health. He described specific
regul ati ons and guidelines in detail.

1: 38: 20 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced that he would hold SB 180 in comittee.

1: 38: 46 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 1:38.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 12, 2012



